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IN THE UNI TED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFI CE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRI AL AND APPEAL BOARD

Thoughtworks, Inc.
a Delaware corporation,

Opposer, : Serial No. 85/800,882
V. ' . Opp. No.: 91215740

Infor (US), Inc.
a Delaware corporation

Applicant.

Hon. Commissioner for Trademarks

P.O. Box 1451

Alexandria, Virginia 22313-1451

Attn.: Trademark Trial and Appeal Board

MOTION TO SUSPEND OPPOSITION PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to Trademark Rule 2.117(a) and Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board Manual of Procedure § 510.02, Applicant requests
that the above-captioned proceeding be suspended in view of a
pending, federal civil action that may have a bearing on this
matter.

SUSPENSION FOR PENDING CIVIL ACTION

The parties are actively involved in a pending federal
civil action that may have a bearing on the instant matter,

namely Thoughtworks, Inc., v. Infor, Inc. , Case No. 1:13-CV-

02331 (N.D. lII.). (See ____attached complaint). Trademark Rule
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2.117(a) provides that, "[w]henever it shall come to the
attention of the [Board] that a party or parties to a pending
case are involved in a civil action . . . which may have a
bearing on the case, proceedings before the Board may be
suspended until termination of the civil action .. .." 37
C.F.R. 8§ 2.117(a); T.B.M.P. § 510.02(a).

Such a suspension is in the interest of avoiding
duplication of the effort of the district court and the Board
and avoiding the possibility of reaching an inconsistent
conclusion. Moreover, suspension is consistent with the Board’s
inherent authority to control the conduct of its own
proceedings.

The Notice of Opposition alleges that the Applicant’s mark
INFOR MING.LE is likely to be confused with Opposer’s marks for
MINGLE, U.S. Trademark Reg. No. 3,576,778 and U.S. Trademark
App. No. 86/015,082. In the federal civil action, Opposer has
filed a complaint that alleges that Applicant’s mark infringes
Opposer’s exclusive rights in its MINGLE marks. Thus,
Applicant’s rights in its INFOR MING.LE mark will be decided in
the civil action. The district court’s findings regarding
whether or not Applicant’s mark infringes Opposer’s rights will
have a direct bearing on Opposer’s claims in this proceeding.

Significantly, the district court’s findings would be binding
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upon the Board, whereas the Board’s findings would be merely

advisory to the district court. See American Bakeries Co. v.

Pan-O-Gold Baking Co. , 2U.S.P.Q.2d 1208 (D.C. Minn. 1986);

Other Telephone CO. v. National Telephone Co. , 181 U.S.P.Q. 79

(Comm’r Pats. 1974); Whopper-Burger, Inc. v. Burger King Corp.

171 U.S.P.Q. 805 (T.T.A.B. 1971).

Accordingly, Applicant respectfully requests that this
proceeding be suspended in order to avoid duplicitous and
potentially conflicting rulings and to preserve the resources of

the Parties and the Board.

Respectfully submitted,

INFOR (US), INC.

, H&&..
Date: April 3, 2014 By:

Timothy D. Pecsenye
Zachary A. Aria

Its Attorneys
BLANK ROME LLP
ONE LOGAN SQUARE
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19103
(215) 569-5619
-3—
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CERTI FI CATE OF MAI LI NG

I hereby certify that this correspondence is addressed to Hon. Commissioner for
Trademarks, P.O. Box 1451, Alexandria, Virginia 22313-1451 and is being deposited

electronically via the Electronic System for Trademark Trials and Appeals (ESTTA)
online filing database on April 3, 2014.

%"""ZSM“

Zachary A. Aria
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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

THOUGHTWORKS, INC., a Delaware )

Corporation )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
V. ) Case N0.13-cv-2331
)
)
INFOR, Inc., a Delaware Corporation )
)
Defendant. )
COMPLAINT

1. Plaintiff, ThoughtWorks, Inc., is a Delaware corgioon with its principal place
of business in Chicago, lllinois.

2. Defendant, Infor, Inc., is a Delaware corporatiathvits principal place of
business in New York, New York.

3. Defendant is doing business throughout the UnitateS including lllinois.

4, This Court has jurisdiction by virtue of the fathat this is a civil action under the
Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1054 seq.), jurisdiction being conferred in accordance with
U.S.C. 8§ 1121 and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a). This Calsd has pendent jurisdiction over all related
claims herein in accordance with 28 U.S.C. 8§ 13B8(b

COUNT |
FEDERAL TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT
(15. U.S.C. § 1114)

5. ThoughtWorks re-alleges and incorporates hereirefgrence the allegations set

forth in paragraphs 1-4 of this Complaint.
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6. ThoughtWorks is engaged in the business of compuativare development and
consulting.

7. ThoughtWorks owns a United States Trademark registr for its MINGLE
mark, Registration Number 3,576,778, for use imnemtion with the following goods: computer
programs for use in the software build processénfield of computer software development
and user manuals and documentation distribute@whtsr; computer software development tools
(the “MINGLE Mark”).

8. Since 2008 ThoughtWorks has used its MINGLE Markannection with
“software as a service” for its business clients.

9. This registration is valid and subsisting, anddénadance with Section 7(b) of
the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. 8 1057(b)), is primadaevidence of ThoughtWorks’ ownership of
the mark, the validity of the mark, and its exchasright to use the mark in connection with the
above identified goods.

10.  Since long prior to the acts of Defendant, Thought® has sold many millions
of dollars of its goods and services under the MLE®Aark and has spent millions of dollars to
advertise and promote that trademark.

11. As aresult of its sales, advertising and useMi¢GLE Mark has come to
represent a valuable goodwill owned by ThoughtWorks

12. Defendant is also engaged in computer softwareldewent and consulting in
competition with ThoughtWorks.

13. Recently Defendant began using the MINGLE Markanrgection with computer

software programs for businesses and for softwaigeservice for business applications.
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14. Defendant’s use of the MINGLE Mark is without Thotid/orks’ authorization
or consent.

15. Defendant’s use of the MINGLE Mark creates a likebd of confusion, mistake
or deception with the consuming public.

16. Defendant’s use of the MINGLE Mark constitutes imjement of a registered
trademark in violation of Section 32 of the Lanhaot (15 U.S.C. § 11141(1)).

17.  Upon information and belief, Defendant’s acts hagen willful, intentional, or in
reckless disregard of, ThoughtWorks’ rights.

18. Defendant’s acts are greatly and irreparably dantptgi ThoughtWorks and will
continue to damage ThoughtWorks until enjoinedhay €ourt; wherefore, ThoughtWorks is
without adequate remedy at law.

COUNT 11
UNFAIR COMPETITION AND FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN
(15 U.S.C. § 1125(a))

19. ThoughtWorks re-alleges and incorporates hereirefgrence the allegations set
forth in paragraphs 1-16 of this Complaint.

20. Defendant’s acts tend to falsely represent its petsland services are affiliated,
connected or associated with or sponsored or apdrby, ThoughtWorks.

21. Defendant’s conduct is likely to cause confusiomcethie origin, sponsorship or
approval of Defendant and its goods and servic#s those of ThoughtWorks

22. Defendant’s aforesaid activities constitute un€éampetition and false
designation of origin in violation of Section 43@)the United States Trademark Act (15 U.S.C.

§ 1125(a)).
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COUNT 111
UNFAIR COMPETITION
(Violation of Illinois Common L aw)

23.  ThoughtWorks re-alleges and incorporates hereirefgrence the allegations set
forth in paragraphs 1-20 of this Complaint.

24. Defendant’s acts described above constitute uogarpetition in violation of
lllinois common law, as the aforementioned acts@mhto an intentional misappropriation of
ThoughtWorks’ MINGLE Mark, reputation and commeft@dvantage.

25. Defendant’s use of the MINGLE Mark and designatitivad are substantially
identical to ThoughtWorks’ MINGLE Mark in conneatiavith the identical goods and services
is likely to confuse and deceive the public byalloy Defendant to pass off its goods and
services as being affiliated with, sanctioned bputhorized by ThoughtWorks.

26. Defendant has willfully and intentionally misapprigted and exploited the
valuable intellectual property rights and goodwifllThoughtWorks in its MINGLE Mark. As a
result of its wrongful actions, Defendant will bejustly enriched.

27.  As aresult of Defendant’s aforesaid conduct, TioWprks has suffered
substantial damage and irreparable harm consttatminjury for which ThoughtWorks has no
adequate remedy at law. Unless this Court enjpefendant’s conduct, ThoughtWorks will
continue to suffer irreparable harm.

COUNT 1V
TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT
(Violation of Illinois Common L aw)

28.  ThoughtWorks re-alleges and incorporates hereirefgrence the allegations set

forth in paragraphs 1-25 of this Complaint.

29. In addition to constituting violations of 15 U.S.C125(a), as alleged in COUNT

Il to this Complaint, Defendant’s actions violae ttommon law of the State of lllinois.
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30. As aresult of Defendant’s aforesaid conduct, Towprks has suffered
substantial damage and irreparable harm consttatminjury for which ThoughtWorks has no
adequate remedy at law. Unless this Court enjoafendant’s conduct, ThoughtWorks will
continue to suffer irreparable harm.

WHEREFORE, ThoughtWorks prays for relief, as foltow

An order preliminarily and permanently enjoiningf®edant and its officers, directors,
agents, servants, employees, affiliated, attoraegsall others acting in privity or in concert with
them, and their parents, subsidiaries, divisionsgassors and assigns, from:

a) directly or indirectly using the MINGLE Mark or ammpnfusingly similar mark that
infringes ThoughtWorks’ MINGLE Mark or constitutesfair competition against
ThoughtWorks; and

b) from doing any other act or thing that is likelydause confusion, mistake or
deception among consumers or others as to theéoredaip of Defendant and its
goods and services with ThoughtWorks and its gamdisservices;

c) Defendant be required to pay to ThoughtWorks iroetance with 15 U.S.C. §
1117(a), an award of the greater of treble theahctamages suffered by
ThoughtWorks, or the wrongful profits enjoyed byf@®w®lant, as a result of its
aforesaid unfair competition, as well as an awdrthmughtWorks’ costs and
attorney’s fees; and

d) ThoughtWorks have such other and further relighegsCourt may deem equitable.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 38(b), ThoughtWorks atsis a trial by jury of all issues

triable of right by a jury.
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PARTRIDGE IP LAW, P.C.

s/Colin T.J. O'Brien

Mark V.B. Partridge hark@partridgeiplaw.cojn
John L. Ambrogi (jla@partridgeiplaw.com)
Colin T.J. O’Brien (colin@partridgeiplaw.com)
Jordan A. Arnoti&rnot@partridgeiplaw.cojn
Elliot C. Bankendorf (ecb@partridgeiplaw.com)
161 North Clark Street, Suite 4700

Chicago, lllinois 60601

(312) 634-9500 Telephone

(312) 275-7503 Facsimile

Attorneysfor the Plaintiff
ThoughtWorks, Inc.
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Int. CL: 9
Prior U.S. Cls.: 21, 23, 26, 36, and 38
Reg. No. 3,576,778

United States Patent and Trademark Office Registered Feb. 17, 2009

TRADEMARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

MINGLE

THOUGHTWORKS, INC. (DELAWARE COR- FIRST USE 12-1-2006; IN COMMERCE 7-31-2007,
PORATION)

200 E. RANDOLPH ST., 25TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL 60601 THE MARK CONSISTS OF STANDARD CHAR-

ACTERS WITHOUT CLAIM TO ANY PARTICULAR

FOR: COMPUTER PROGRAMS FOR USE IN THE FONT, STYLE, 5IZE, OR COLOR.

SOFTWARE BUILD PROCESS IN THE FIELD OF

COMPUTER SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT AND

USER MANUALS AND DOCUMENTATION DIS- SN 77-102,460, FILED 2-8-2007.

TRIBUTED THEREWITH; COMPUTER SOFTWARE

DEVELOPMENT TOOCLS, IN CLASS ¢ (US. CLS. 21,

23, 26, 36 AND) 38). DAVID MURRAY, EXAMINING ATTORNEY




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Zachary A. Aria, do hereby certify that | have on the 3
day of April, 2014, mailed by first class United States mail,
postage prepaid, the foregoing Motion to Suspend to the

following:

Colin O’Brien, Esquire

Partridge IP Law P.C.

321 North Clark Street, Suite 720
Chicago, IL 60654

Attorney for Opposer

Haa,..

rd

Zachary A. Aria
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